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St. David, King of Scotland

w E are privileged in having. as our patron, a Saint who did so much

o ensure that Our Lord and Hiz Blessed Mother would be
properly honoured in this, our native land. David | of Scolland proved
himsell & worthy son of his gracious mother, 51 Margaret

When his sister married Henry | of England, he wénr 1o live with
her in the refined atmosphere of the English court, OF maore influsnce
than that court, during these impressionzble vears of his youth, must
have been the benutiful exsample of Matilda, his sister, Reporis of her
queenly reign in England could almost be mistaken for those of her
modher, 51 Marparet, “ Wrapped in hairclodh under bher regal dress,
she used, during Lent, 1o wear out the threshold of the churches wilh
her bare feet. Bor did she shrink from washing the feet of the sick
and touching their sores, lingering over them with long and tender
K isses,”

A chikdivood spent in the care of his mother, 51 Margarel: a wvouth
spent in the company of such a wise and samtly sister: the kind and
gentle St Anselm as his confessor and friend: whan more perfect school
for the future King of Scotlund?

He was made Earl of the Lothins and Border Lands of Scotland,
and for a full seventeen years he ruled this pant of our coantry. In
1124, on the death of his brother, he succesded o the throne and
extended his rule w the whole of Scotland. Thus began the reign of
perhaps the grealest king that Scotland has ever known, His mother
before him had dome much: David was o do even more, building on
the foundations which she had undoubiedly laid. He saw that the whole
future of bis country lay in s being a wrely Christian Suiie, where
Cind™s name would be held in honour throughout the length and breadih
of the land, He did nm hesitate w spend his tme and money in
spreading the influence of Our Lord's own Church. He re-cstablished
the divcese of Glasgow, arranged for fve new dioceses had them all
divided inio deaneries and parishes. He foundead monasteries and abbeys
wll over il couniry  Io sipch an exteni that ore of his sucorssors
described him as being ™a sair sainet for the croon,” thus implying
he had lavished all his roval revenues on the Church, But David, being
a wise and far-secing man, fully realised the great benefis such founda-
tions would bring. aoi only for the spritual life of the country, but
also for its tlemporal prosperity. Nor was he mistaken, as the subsequent
hisiory of our country so clearly shows
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He brought the Cistercians from Melrose o the new A whi
he was having built a1 Newbattle 1o be dedicated 10 Our Ludﬂ;ﬁal;eﬂltg;
the one dearest 10 his heart was the Abbey of Holwiood, an abbey
worthy to enshrine the great relic of the True Cross, the Holy Rood
which his mother had brought over from Hungary and held in her
hands as she dwed. Round the building of this abbey ix woven a legend
}-‘:Iﬁﬂilﬁ:lby 'rh-e;:ug:_t 1nn our own altar rails, which, i it is not troe,
: cast very heautiful, and significant of the 1 e i i
he was held by the people of his time. gk aom N i

Disregarding the advice of his confessor, he wenl out hunting on
the Feast of the Exallation of the Cros. As he waited alone in the
clearing. ready to take up the chase, a stag appeared running swillly
towards him. His horse bolled and the stag atiacked and wounded
David. On reaching up to seire the antlers, he clasped instead a cross
which came away casily in his hands. Relieved of the cross, the stag
ran off in the direction from which it came. According to this legend
David built Holyrood 1o enshrine that Holy Cross, given to him in such
a wonderful way,

He ruled Scotland for 29 wvears, in which time he united it as never
before, remoulding it into the pattern set by Our Lord Himself, “ He
it is that hath quelled thy savage ways with Christian piety ™ “ He it is
that by word as well as by example has prevailed upon thee 1o go
often 1w Church 0 be present at the Divine Sacrifice,"

At last, on Sunday, 24th May, 1153, aflter receiving all the Sacraments
with great devotion, he passed away so peacefully thai he seemed not
by have died at all. Mourned by all his subjects, David * surrendered
It::;:lhﬂz w the earth. and his soul w the fellowship of the angels in

Yen.

David was never formally canonized by the Church, as was his
mother, but at the time of his death there were no hard and fast rbes
about CARORNIZALIOn being reserved to Rome, The popular devotion of
the people in a particular place. duly approved by the Bishop, was
u!'lm_sulh.‘:ienl. This seems truc in the case of St David, for he was
held in greal honour for centurics, and his name s found in a1 least
three old calendars of Scomish Sainis, .

On 21st May, 1854, the Sunday necarest his ancient feastday, our
church was solemnly dedicated o St David, King of Scotland.  What
beiter patron could we have than he of whom it was said, “He
impressed all by his wondrous courtesy and the sweetness of his manners,
And if it fell out that a priest or monk or knight, rich or poor. trades-
man or peasant. citizen or pilgrim, talked with him, he conversed with
each on his own business or duties in 50 seemly and unassuming a lone,
that each in wn thought the King had his affairs only at heart, and
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thus he sent them all away, happy and edificd.” What better guaraniec
that he will listen to our pravers'’!

But as members of his parish, citizens of Scotland living in the hear
of his beloved Lothians, we have an added reason to pay him due
honowr and respect. and 1o enlist his help. He is now our representative
in the Roval Court of Heaven, and his nterest in this country is surely
even stronger now than it was when he was on earth. Let us pray
1o him that Scotland will once again be what he intended it always 1w
be, & vast shrine where the names of Jesus and Mary are honoured in
every corner of the kand,

LT



The Church in Midlothian

N an occasion such as this, the centenary vear of the foundation

of our parish and the erection of our beawtiful church, we can rightly
expericnoe feelings of pride and joy as we look back through the
centuries and marvel at the way God has directed the ebb and fow
of Catholicism in this part of our beloved Scotland. We know how God
promised that the gates of Hell would never prevail against His Church.
We realise that He was speaking of the Church in general and did not
promise that the Church would always rise triumphant in any particular
country or place. We are grateful then that He saw fit 1o guide and
direct His Church in Scotland, throughout its many vears when times
:;rf triumph and prosperity faded so ofien o times of darkness and

1slress,

Although we are now celebrating the centenary of St David's parish,
we do mot thereby imply, as so many would have us beliove, that the
Church has only existed in this area for a hundred wvears, Very prob.
ably, the Church founded by Our Blessed Losd Himself was first known
in this country in the carly days of Roman occupation. As early as
360 A.D. we hear of & young man named Minmn who kit ithese shores
for Rome, there 1w be consecrated Bishop and relurn with Papal
autharity to preach the faith in his native land. There are many who
believe, on good avthority, that St Parick, the great apostle of Ireland,
first learned his faith in this land of owrs, From Ireland in later years
came 51 Columba to lona. He and his many disciples, branching out
in all directions from that Binle island centre of Catholicism, spread
the faith throughout the length and breadih of Scotland, opening new
centres and strengthening old established ones.  From S1. Columba and
lona came 51 Aidan to Lindisfarne, there 1o direct the many missionary
activities in south-gast Scotland and north-east England. From Lindis-
farme and 50 Aidan came 54, Eata 1o found and establish the monastery
of (Id Melrose around the vear 645 AD. which was 10 become the
mosl importani monastic cenire in this south-gas district of Scotkmd.
Oul of Melrose came St Cuthbert, one of the greatest of our Scottish
saints, who did so much to spread the Kingdom of God in this part
of Scottand,

But the Church, w0 well established by these greal missionary saints,
was mid o be lefi o develop in peace. Rather did it have to struggle
for survival under the savage whip of continual warfare. The rnival
chieftains in the differemt kingdoms of Scotland were for ever raiding
each other’s territory, plundering and burning wherever they wenl
During the cighth and ninth centuries, the Norsemen and the Danes
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ivaded and terrorized the land continuously.  The monasteries and
churches were obvious centres for looting and burning, and monks,
nins and villagers were murdered mercilessly, Weakened considerably
by these raids through loss of numbers and destruction of property, the
Church had 1o struggle for survival. In such days of trouble and unrest.
efficient organization was practically impossible and, moreover, lack of
communication both with each other and the parent Church on the
Continent tended o make things evern more dificuls, 1s it any wonder
then that when 5. Margaret came. she found the Church in Scotland
still clinging 1o ¢ustoms and uwsages long snce corrected and reformed
by the main body of the Catholic Church. The wonder is that the
Church survived at all. Through force of circumslances, religious life
in Scotland was at a very low ebb. The people still believed the doctrines
of the Church, It was in the practice of the faith that they differed
in some respects from the Church ol Bome. The saeritice of the Mass
was still offered. but around it various incidental ceremonies seemmsd
1 have crept in.

Giod did not deseny His Church. He guided 51, Margaret 1o our
shores, and she and her som. S1. David, re-established the Church on a
firm footing. They ded not found & new Church: they reformed and
re-established a Church already there, To suggest anything else is
msirous—bo prove anylhing else is hopebess.  Yel, how often do we
come across passapges like the following in standard Scotiish  history
ks

“The Church of Rome entered Scoiland with Queen Margaret and
her som, David 1. Before thal time the Church was prinnitive and pure,
truly national and independent of all external rule. The authority of
the Pope was never acknowledged, indeed never thought of. and it was
ot 1l after a severe and prolonged siruggle that the ancient Columban
Church of Scotland was conguered, overshadowed and absorbed by
the Church of Rome,”

There are many in Scotland who still believe that myth that the
Cliurch of MNinian, Columba, Asdan, Mungo, Eata and Cuthbert was
mot in communion with the Church of Rome., Bul, as Mapr Hay has
writien in his * Chain of Error in Sconish History,™ ™ You cannol fool
all the people all the time with a partiul selection of facts, a constant
repetition of mis<quctations. and a persisient suppression of documenis.™

Through the medium of two saints. Margaret and David. the Church
in Scotland was restored 1o something of its former glory, in constant
wuch with the mother Church at Rome. et on such firm foundations,
3 new era of the Church in Scotland began, David's policy of founding
nom@steries and religious communities throughout the land soon b
o prove its worth, The whole country was now Catholic, Gaod was
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honoured everywhere in fitling fashion, Magnificent cathedrals, churches
and abbeys were buill all over the land where the people hastened 1o
pray and honour God in the way they knew He wanled. And they
showed by their owward display of splendour in the service of Giod
that they really loved Him. The Holy Father in Rome held his subjects
in Seollund in such high esteem that Soodland was termed “ the favourite
daughter of the Holy See”

In spending so much on the Church, Duvid proved himself a far-
sweeing and wise king. Ower these few hundred years, the Church made
Scotland what she was, a nation whose culture could compare favour-
ably with any other in the world, She led the way in education, our
greal universities of 51 Andrews, Glasgow and Aberdeen owing their
foundation to her. Painting and carving, farming and fishing. even coal
mining all had their place in the national economy. The Church led
the way in everything and Scotland rejoiced in its new-found prosperity.
This part of the Lothians was one of the great centres of this spiritual
and industrial revival in Scotland. In 1140, $i. David founded the Abbey
of 51. Mary's, Mewbatile, bringing there the Cistercians from Melrose, In
no lime the whole area prospered under the wise direction of these early
Cistercian monks. They looked after the spiritual life of the people and
did not neglect their temporal welfare. They instructed the people in the
arts of agriculture and forestry, ™ There can be no doubt whatever that
the richness of the agriculiural lands throughowt Midlothian and along
the East Coast is owing to the skill of the monastic fathers who divided
their day between the alar and the plough. We reap whal they sowed.™
They possessed three or four mills 1o grind the corn grown on their
land. Dairy farming and sheep farming abo had their place, In one
merchant’s book. which tells us of the quality and prices of wool and
hide from Scotland in the year 1490, we find Newbanle wool not only
ranked highest in price. but the name itsell seems to stand for the highest
guality in Scoich wool,

Perhaps their greatest distinetion is in their being the pioneers of
coal mining in this country. As carly as the vear 1200 we find mention
in their charters of coal. Their efforts were nol confined 1o the Lothians,
for they were probably also the pioneers of mining in Lanarkshire
where they owned vast territories of land given them by Roval Charter.
The wide mineral district of Monkland received ils name from those
Newbantle monks. The coal trade must have been a vigorous one, for
they actually went Lo the expense of driving a road from Newhanle o
the coast, Along this highway the coal was carted in their home-made
carls to be shipped from Mussclburgh, And these canls did not come
home empty, for they were filled with imports from foreign countries,

This part of Midlothian had many famous and wealthy religious
houses, though none could quite match the splendoor and influence of
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Mewhatthe Abbew. A httle church was buill at Cockpen for the
Catholics in that area, and this was served by the monks from Newhbanbe
Abbey, There was a beautiful church dedicated w0 51 Michael m
Inveresk, and on Soutra Hill the Canons Regular had * the 51 Bernards
of Midlpihian,” which was buili * not only to offer a life of peaceful
meditation to its religions bul also as o sheler in snow sworms and in
rains G the weary travellers crossing iis bleak and lonely hill” The
Catholics of Dalkeith and district, if they did not go w the Abbey
Church, used to attend Mass at the Church of 5t Edwin in Lasswade,
which was served from Restalrig. This state of affairs did not last long,
hivwever, for im0 1386 Sir James rﬁ.'ﬂ.lgl'.lh hwill & Chaptl here which later
developed into the Collegiate Church of 51 Micholas with a Provost
and fve canons, wnder the Abbey of Dunfermline. In 1450, the
Collegiate Church of 51 Maithew was founded at Roslin, ™ a church of
exiraordinary glory amd magnificence.” Then came the Collegiate Church
of 51 Mary and 50 Mungo at Crichion, founded in 1499, This arca
was indeed rich in the splendour and varnely of itz religious houses,
and the practice of the Catholic faith flounshed vigorously,

As we look back on those days we see the tremendous danger of the
Church in this country being so bound up with its wemporal prosperity.
The emplation o concenttate on the riches and treasures around them
rather than prepare themsclves for the riches and ircasures «f Heaven
must have been very strong, Inevitably, abuses began o creep
Before the dayvs of Margarel and David, the Church had o fighi for
survival, now she was rich and prosperous and weakened thas time.
not by lack of manpower and property, but rather by 1oo many half-
hearted religions owning wo much property. It was God's plan thai
Hisx Church be pruned of all undesimble elements, and so He allowed
the Reformation to come o Scotland.

Space does nol permil detaik of the progress and vanous aspects of
the Reformation in Scotland, Suffice it o say thai the fact that some
Catholics did survive is an overwhelming proof of the mercy of Cod
rather than the failure of the Reformers. 1t was their avowed intention
to slamp out everything connected with the Church in every corner of
the land, And all this was done in the name of religion, They though
that the only way to pleass Gisd was (o rid the country of the sacrifice
of the Mass, which alone of all sacnfices is the ong that really pleases
Him. They thought the way 10 prove o Jesus they loved Him was (o
insult the mame and desecrate the churches and shrines dedicated w
the perfect mother who gave Him birth and served Him so faithfully
throughout her life,

“Mo invading army ever committed such merciless havoe in the
territory of an army. No people, before or since. deliberately destroved
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with all the formalities of law, the monuments of art and indust
boqueathed them by their ancestors.™ B

Just as Newbattle Abbey had plaved a large part in spreading and
strengthening Catholicism, so now, under its Abbot, a certamn Mn“rE Ker
of Cessford, it was to do much in spreading Protestantism. The Abbot,
Mark Ker. renounced the Catholic faith and expelled the monks whao
w-:m_rd fiol f-::l":mt‘_ in his footsteps, e entered so heariily into the Refor-
mation that it is probable the Abbey was not destroyed hul was
recpecied as his home, We find him among the lords and barons who
subscribed to the * Contract 1o defend the liberty of the Evangel of
Ii'hri.!t.“ He was made Commendator of the Abbev of Newbattle by
Parliament and ™ The Richt Venerable Mark. Commendator of New-
battle. continued through his remaining life 1o take 0 prominent part
in the civil and ecclesiastical affairs of the country.” In course of time
the Commendatorship was changed into a secular bordship. all the lands
and property of Newhatile going with it. Thus did the House of Lothian
begin aid the title, togeiher with the property, passed mnto the hands
of the present family by the marriage of the grand-daughter of the first
Mark Ker 10 William Ker, eldest son of the Earl of Ancram,

Catholicism was practically wiped out in this area which once was
s0 full of its churches and shrines. For centuries the Holy Sacrifice
ceased in Dalkeith, and at the end of the cighteenth century it is fairly
certain thal there was not a single Catholic in or near the town,

) Dhespite the l_:ll'iblt perseculion and the atrocious penal laws which
crippled Catholic activity for so long, a remnant of boval Catholics
remained in Scotland. Gradually, in God's good time, their numbers
began Lo increase,

In 1778 the Synod of Glasgow and Ayr declared a general fast day
of atonement because * the astonishing progress of this detestable, cruel
and lllljl-'l?t superstition is s much the more alarming as il appears
not only in remote and uncultivated corners. but in the most populous
and improved parts of the land™ About this time. the varioss penal
laws against Catholics had been relieved a littke in England. Ireland
and Wales, Greal indeed was the fear that the same thing would
happen in Scotland. Resolutions and petitions poured in from all parts
of the country protesting against the proposed outrage of having them
relaned in Scotland. Typecal of many of these intolerant protests against
wlerance is this interesting resolution passed in Dalkeith on the first
of January, 1779, and ordered 10 be published in one of the Edinbuwrgh
AW P Pers:

Thelee

“ The ten incorporated trades, merchants and a respectable number
of the inhabitants of the wwn of Dalkeith, alarmed with the appre-
hension of a repeal of the Penal Statutes against Popery, have lately held
several meetings 10 deliberate on this subject: and were unanimously of
the opinion that however much they are disposed 1o allow all reasonable
liberty of comscience so far as may be consistent with the peace and
safety of the kingdom: yet, the members of the Church of Rome. being
confessedly subjects of a foreign jurisdicton which with them has power
1o dispense with all laws and obligations, even most sacred caths when
it may promote their own wicked purposes, and having embraced a
religion not only fraught with the grossest and most impious absurdities
amd superstiteens but which openly avows such principles us are aneon-
sistent with the peace and safety of il sociely: a religion that has
all along been propagated by fire and wword, plols, nusacres and perse-
cutions—that such can have no titke o legal wheration. They therefore
resolved to concur with other societies in promoting every prudent and
constifutional measure for preventing such repeal. and mmediately
opened a public subscription which is already filled up with a consider-
able sum, for the purpose of carrying said measures into execution.™

Thirteen vears later these penal laws were relaxed n Scotland and
Catholics were allowed o own properiy and build churches.

Making use of the troubles and the Great Famine in Ireland for His
own purposes. God allowed a new band of worker missionaries to invade
ihis land which had rejected His Church so violently, In itself, the Irish
Famine was a terrible thing. Indirectly, it proved of great bencht to
Scotland and Catholicism. By the year 1B31 there were over fifteen
thousand Irish-horn emigrants living in Edinburgh and the surroumding
districts, not counting any of their children who may perhaps have been
born in Scotland, Most of these were loval Catholics,

In the wear 1845, we read in the Catholic Directory that a chapel
was purchased al Portobello by the Rev. Dr. Carruthers for the comveni-
ence of the Catholics who lived in Portobello, Leith, Musselburgh,
Dalkeith and other villages 1o the castward of Edinburgh. It was rather
a large parish which extended “in an easterly direction from the base
of Arthur Scat to within a shorl distance of the walls of Berwick-on-
Tweed, and from the southern coasts of the Firth of Forth 10 the wide
extended range of the Lammermwie Hills,™

In 1849 a voung Scottish-born priest, newly ordained in Glasgow,
was appointed o Portobello parish. Fr. Mantica found himself in an
aren, once so famous for its Catholic culture but © so completely had
Catholicism been driven cut that among the native Scottish popalation
it would be difficult to mention more than a few upholders of the ancient
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faith.” * The Catholics in this area, who may number about a thousand,
are for the most pan Irish emigrants eamming a precarious living as
labourers and farm workers. They are scattered over the counry in
detached groups. With a view w affording them at least occasional
opportunibies of assisting at Mass, the clergvman has opened stations
at Dalkeith, Tranent, Pathhead and Haddington, sach of which is visiied
al stated times.”

In 1850, Holy Mass was once more olfered in the wwn of Dalkeith,
A hall was hired from the Freemasons, but the let of this soon ¢eased.
The next linde chapel was a tiny aitic in a baker’s house, Here it was
that Fr. Mantica came every so often 1o sav Mass and hear confessions.
The liwtle aitic had 1o serve as chapel, sacristy and confessional.
Apparent difficulies were soon overcome. sometimes in a novel bu
always effective way, The secrecy of the confessional was safeguarded
by the appointment of two heavily shod labourers whose job il was o
create as much noise a5 possible by ramping up and down the linle
room. Worn oul by his work, Fr. Mantica died in 1852, a young man
under 30, Before he died, he had the great consolation of welcoming
1o his flock the most notable convert to the faith in Scotland, the Lady
Cecil, Downger Marchioness of Lothian, :

After much prayer and deliberation she finally decided 10 become a
Catholic, and was received into the Church at Farm Streel, the Jesuit

Church in London. ©On her return to Scotland, her first care was io
bulld a suiable church in Dulkeith, close to her home at Newbalile.
It was w0 be dedicated to St David of Scotland in reparation for the
destruction of his many foundatons throughout Scotland and, more

particularly, for his abbey at Mewbattle in which she now had to make
her haome,

Mewbattle and the House of Lothian had plaved a large part in the
uprosalmg of Catholicism in this aren. By a remarksble coincidence,
the House of Lothian from Newhattle was o provide Catholicism in
this area with & fresh impelus.  Thus were amends made in a
glorious way.

Prepudice was still strong, however, and the Lady Cooil had difficuliy
in procuring a suitable site for the proposed church. It was nol until
lane 1832 that she succeeded, through a third person. in feuing the
present commanding site on which 51, David's now stands,

In 1853 the foundation stone was laid by Bishop Gillies.

* A strange scene was wilnessed at the laying of the foundation
stone of 5. David's, Dalkeith. Lady Lotlian, her oo daughiers and
a few others were kneeling in the wooden building where the ceremany
was taking place. At the door stood a crowd of Black-faced colliers, all
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wrying to see over each other’s shoulders. Facing them was Bishop
Gillies in full Pontificals, saying. © My dear brethren, you are surprised
al secing me in this dress. This dress is one ihousand, eight hundred
vears obd.” All mouths were agape and the discourse that followed was
listened 10 with breathless silence, whereas at first nothing could be
heard but the pelting of stones against the wooden shed. as & Protestant
demonstration against the Popish doings within.™

On the Feast of the Annunciation. 25th March, 1854, the parsh
of S David's, Dalkeith, was established by Bishop Gillies. The first
parish pricst 10 come here was Fr. William Mackay, who previously
had been serving as a curate in S1. Mary's Cathedral. Edinburgh. The
congregation attached to it numbered not less than 800 by this time,
In Dalkeith and wicinity there were aboul 300 and the other 500 were
spread over the country at Pathhead, Temple, Middleion, Loanhead,
Roslin and Pemicuik.

Two months later, on the 21st May. 1854, the Sunday nearest the
ancient feastday of St Duavid of Scotland, the chuarch was formally
opened with a Solemn High Mass a1 which Bishop Murdoch of the
Western  District presided.  Bishop Gillies was ot this time on the
Continent and could not manage back in time. The Mass was sung
by Rev. P. McManus, of 5t Mary's, Edinburgh, the Rev, F. Meckerrel
being Deacon and the Rev, F. Cooke being Sub-Deacon. After the
Giospel was sung, the first sermon was preached by the Rev. ). 5.
McCorry, of St Joha's, Perth, who. although he did not know it, was
destined 10 be the next parish priest

The church was packed to the doors and eversthing conspired to
make the whole service singularly impressive.

The Vesper Service commenced at seven o'clock, and once again the
church was crowded, though not 1o the same extent as it had been in
the morning, Dr. Murdoach, the Bishop of the w'l:al!:l'h Vicaniate,
preached an eloquent sermon on Our Blessed Lady. which must have
proved instructive to the * many most respectable Frotestants who were
present.” The writer in the Catholic Directory for that year s carred
away by his memory of the occasion:

“The altar blared with the brilliant illumination of ils numerous
lights when the Most Sacred Host was clevated, and the congregation
enjoyed the cclebration of one of the hu:li-:sl rites of the -L"hlur::tj in a
style of splendour long, alas, unknown in ihiz onoe Cathalic dl!v.tr'l{:t.
We belicve that there was not a Catholic heart amongst us that did
not send up o Heaven o prayer of the most gratcful and aﬂq.:tmnmc
fervour on behall of the Marchioness of Lothian who had raised the
noble edifice in which we knelt, whose time, whose talents and whose
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purse are cheerfully and liberally devoted o the service of religon-—
who walks in Catholic ways with the leading and ever present purpose
of promoting the glory of God, She socks not human praise. and we
shall not offer her any. Bui. from the very depth of our soul. we pray
that God may richly reward her for the good she has accomplished.
and give to her and 1o all who are dear 1o her. every spiritual and
temporal hlessing here, and eternal happiness hereafter.

Having been solemnly opened under the invocation of St. David
of Scotland. the next day the High Alar was solemnly consecrated by
Bishop Murdoch, this function being necessarily deferred ™ parily
because the Bishop could not hind tme sooner, parily because, up o
Saturday. the allar was not finished.™

Faghirrn
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The Development of the Parish

W ITHIN a few months of the opening of the new church, vet another

building was completed. Our first parishioners realised only oo
well that their children must be given a good education in the sheltered
atmosphere of a Catholic school. St David's School was formally
opened in the autumn of that year., The school was nol very big,
measuring only 30 foet by 22 feet. but it served its purpose admirably
in those first few years, The teacher and the pricst had littke apariments
to themselves, and they did not have much spare time. as they had o
conduct a day school and an evening ome 1o suil the convenience of
its first pupils. The children apparently sang very well for they were
entrusied with all the choir work in the church,

Fr. Mackay remained here for four years and during his time of
office had the great consolation of seeing his parish grow. St David's
was showered with special favours from Rome. chief among them heing
the making of the High Alar a * Privileged © one, which means that
every Mass which has ever been said on it or ever will be said on i,
carries with it a plenary indulgence for the person for whom il is offered,
whether that person be living or dead. Anociher remarkable favour,
abowt which the Pope scems 1o have had second thoughls, was the
granting of a plenary indulgence 10 anyone who received Holy Com-
munion in 5t. David's, no matter how often that would be. Apart from
the usual conditions laid down of being in a state of grace and praying
for the Holy Father's intentions, there is one extra condition which
Pope Pius IX approved of. 11 was that those receiving Holy Communion
should pray in St. David's for the increase of devotion o Our Blessed
Lady in Scotland. Perhaps thal was one of the reasons why devolion 1o
Our Lady was very strong in Dalkeith, The parish was represented
in Rome by Lady Lothian when Pope Pius 1X defined the dogma of
the Immaculate Conceplion. It was actually on that vocasion, at her
resquest, that he chose to give the special indulgence 10 51 David's.
Early in the next vear, by special permission of the Dominican Fathers
in Rome, Fr. Mackay was depated 1o form the * Confraternity of the
Rosary ™ in Dalkeith, a very practical way of ensuring that devotion w
Our Lady would grow sironger. In later vears, however, the Holy
Father, as if realising his amazing generosity to this very privileged
parish, decided to limit the plenary indulgence. for anvone receiving
Hely Cammunion, o once only every month.

When Fr. Mackay depuried in 1838, be left behind him a steadily
increasing Catholic population. There were only 43 baplisms in his
firsi year there and. by the time he left, this had increased 1w nearly
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%) in the vear 1858. HMis successor was his great friend, Fr, ). Stuarn
MoCorry, the preest be had invited From Pertly 1w preach the sermom
on the opening day. This priest began the building of a preshytery, as
the school was beginning 1o get rather overcrowded, Fr. MeCorry was
not destined to stay long, however, as other plans were being considered
fisr the mpsion of S0 Dasad’s,

In 1860, the Jesuit Fathers opened their new church in Launston.
Lady Lothian was very interested in their welfare. and it was her ardent
wish that they should be given charge of the Dalkeith mission, Al her
request, Bishop Gillis asked the Father Provincial if he could spare
one of his priests to take over at 51 David’s. The Provingial replied
by sending two, the first Jesuit Superior being a Fr. Robert Whitty.
He remuined there for six vears, till 1867, and was obviously a very
important man in the Society of Jesus. All the Jesuit houses in Scotland
were under his jurisdiction, for he was the Religious Superior of the
houses in Edinburgh, Glasgow, Galashiels and Selkirk, Consequently
he had 10 have an assistant priest, and in these few years there was
quite a succession of them, Their names were: Frs. Docherty, Corry,
Leslie, Mcleod, Selby and Foxwell,

Under his wise jursdiction, the pansh began to expand. On the third
Sunday of every month, Mass was said in Glencorse. This was made
possible ** through the Kindness and generosity of Michagl Fox, who
had an apartment set aside where the Catholics of Penicuik, Roshin and
Losnhead were able to asemble” Pathhead was alo served on the
first Sunday of every alternate month, when there was Mass, sermon

and catechetical instruction,

In 1B67, Fr. Joseph McQuoin succeeded as rector of St David's. He
was not Religious Superior but, by this time, the parish had extended
so mwch that it was impossible for one man to do all the work. For
instance, in the first vear of his office there were 115 baptisms, and from
then on, the number rarely fell below a hundred. His assistanl priest
was the Rev, John Pope, and between them they managed to serve
an area which mcluded Penicuik, Glencorse, Roslin, Rosewell., Bonny-
rige. Loanhead, Gilmerton, Gorebridge, Pathhead and the surrounding
districts right down 10 Soutra Hill. Aboot this time oo, they were
asked to take over the chaplaincy of Greenlaw Barracks, Their accep-
tance of (his meant weekly visstation, a funher demand on their already
hard pressed time. In 1865, Fr. Corry had written from Galashicls:
= The congregation al Dalkeith now numbers severul hundreds, a won-
derful increase on the numbers twelve or fourteen years ago”™ What
must have besn their thoughts as these priests now surveyed the scene

aof their labours?

Tarewuly

In 1869, Fr. Francis Jarret came to replace Fr, Pope. and he seems
1o have been given complete charge of the Pathhead and Gorebridge
areas. In no time ke had things well under control. A schoolbouse was
acquired and a schoolmistress was engaged at £40 2 vear. The average
allendance at the school was about thirty, Lady Lothian once more
came (o the aid af the mission and a new chiurch was built i Patlibead,
This was dedscated to Our Lady and was solemnly opened on the 2nd
June, 1872, Fr. Jarrel was called away soon afier this and Fr. Augustus
Law came o fake his place. This meant a complete change of clergy,
as Fr. McQuoin had been replaced as Rector by a Fr. William
Thomson. 1L is from these two that we learn something of the Catechist
Plan, Fr. Law writes: * We are very keen to have some sorl of outdoor
preaching in the surrounding villages.™ He tells us how he had previously
sent round little pamphlets on the Faith with a hawker. who contrived
o leave them lying about wherever she had sokd her wares, He writés
enthusiastically about this catechia plan. which apparently was one
that was used in the missioas in India, Fr. Thomson gives a more
detailed deseription of what was done: * He gives his whole time 10
his work and receives £30 a year, He gives instructions for a week al
a time in each locality. returning home at night. There are eight
different cenires, each containing two o three places where instructions
are given. He teaches both the children who are attending Protestani
schools, and ihe older ones when they are free and can be got hold of,
He prepares them for the sacraments and helps also in the instruction
of converts. He instructs for five days in the week, and on Saturday
helps in the church On the Friday, the priest visis the siation and
examines the children, giving small prizes w those who have made most
progress. The system has been of the greatest wse here in this parish,
and | do mod see how the children could have been instrocied without i

The parish wis mdeed increasing. Lady Lothian writes: ™ St David's
looks very pretty. There are crowds of young men in the front pews.
Ihe church is geling oo small.™

Becavse of this great increase there was guestion, in 1871, of building
a chapel at Roslin, and Lady Lothian wemt so0 far as 1o acquire a
suitable site there, Afier much discussion il was decided it would be
much better to build wo chapels, one at Loanhead and the other at
Penicuik, instead of the one at Roshin, The ground was sold again and
a site was purchased a1 Loanhesd. There was great difficulty in
acquiting this ground as proprietors in the district refwsed 0 Ffewn For
Cathalic purposes.

In 1R73, Fr. Law was replaced by Fr, Jloseph Head, who was destined
1o remain here for the next fifiy-one vears. Fr. Thomson continued
ws Hector,
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In 1875 they took on an extra charge. This ook them down 1o the
Moorfos Hills once a month 1o say Mass for the Catholics who were
emploved ai the new Edinburgh waterworks, The contractor here very
kindly buill a temporary wooden chapel for them, big enough 1o seal
200, A temporary chapel had also been acquired at Roslin 1o seat the
same amaount, aml already plans were well ahead w provide churches
at Loanhead and Penicuik. Mass was also said a1 Bilston, where there
WHs 0 i.:1.1n3rcg;|.|liem of ower 25,

In 1876, ihe Skters of Mercy came friom S5 Cathenine's Comvent in
Edinburgh to take charge of the school. Thus began their long associa-
tion with the parish of Dalkeith. A new Infant school was added by
Lady Lothian as the first of a series of alerations and myprovements
which she proposed to make., But all was not well with her. This far-
seging woman, whoe had done so much for 51, David's, began o detect
a feeling of apathy crecping in. Perhaps it was because they did not
have 1o sacnlice so much amd things were getting easier. | am sure
that 1. for one, do not like troubles, bat 1 do believe that a few would
be good for us Catholics. The woung men here ssem o think that if
they go to Mass and their duties, all is done. They do nod seem 10
think that they should be ready to give up a day’s sport, etc., when
Catholic interests are al stake.” During that vear, the new church was
started al Loanhead. [ was (o be dedicated to 51, Margaret, the mother
of 51, David, Mr, Goldie was the architect, and the lolal cosi was in
the regon of E£1.500, the greater part of which was given by Ladw
Lothian and her sons. The remaining sum was 10 be contnbuled by
the congregation, She did not live 1o see the opening of this fine cherch.
While on 4 pilgrimage o Rome in 1877, she died very pescefully amid
soenes of great mourning. Her body was brought back w Dalkeith and
ihere, by a wery special privilege, sbe was lad to rest benenth the
sanctuary of St David's which she had done so much w0 beawify. The
Sodemn Requiem Mass was sung by Bishop Stram. The Sacred Hean
Shrine was erected by the congregation in memory of this deeply
religious woman who had inspired them all with her boundless
generosity and the simplicity of her life.

In her will shve lefy £2300 for the promotion of Catholic education
in the Eastern District of Seotland, with preference 1o be given 1o St
Dawic s, £1,000 was Chus sel aside for the Dalkeith school. |n considerns-
tion of this, the nuns ook over & house near the chapel. St Andrew’s
Convenl, as it was called, was a branch establishment of 51, Catherine's,
for the benefit of the schools in Dalkeathe. A further £600 was sel aside
by the executors of her will for the building of a church-schoal @
Penicwk. Mass was being said every month there, in a room hired by
Fr, Thomson, Work soon started on the building of the church.
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Om the 26th May, 1878, the new church of 51 Margaret’s, Loanhead,
was solemnly opened by Archbishop Sirain, I sull ¢ontineed o be
served from Dalkeith every second Sunday,

In Dalkeith, things were going on much as before, One ool of
general anterest might be noted and that s, that after & great deal
of argument and persuasion, a cerlgin portion of the new graveyand
was st aside for Catholic burial, though the Council reserverd the right
o dispose of any pan of i if they thought fir.

In 1881, 51 Margaret's, Loanbead, was made a separate parish under
the Rev. Joseph Hamnan, The new parish was o include Penicuik.
Dalkeith was lefl to serve Roslin and Rosewell, In 1882, Penicuik was
made a separaie parish. and Rosewell, Hawthomden and Roslin were
taken from the care of Dalkeith and made part of this new parish under
the Rev. Fr. McAnaa. That same vear the new diocess of S0 Andrews
and Edinburgh was divided into deaneries. Fr. Thomson was made
the first Dean of this district, which was comprised of the parishes of
Dalkeith. Dunbar, Haddingion, Loanhead, Penicuik and Portobello,

Having been relieved of so many of her former commitments, (he
parish of Dalkeith coukl now concentmte more on what was lefi. Mass
was said every week in Pathhead and, strange as it may seem, the
average number of baptisms was very soon nearing the hundred mark
again every vear. In 1885, Fr. Thomson had to leave because of ill-
healih, and his place was taken by Fr, William Lea. Work began o
start again, this time on enlarging and extending the schools. A new
coach-howse, stable and hamess-room were buill—a very necessary item
i Lhose days, for we must remember that all the wravelling done by
these priests in the exercise of their duty was either on fool or on horse-
back, or in that coach which so many of our older parvishioners still
associste with Fr. Head. In 1885, under the spiritual guidance of Frs.
Len and Head, wvariows guikds were formed in the parish, There wias a
Women's Sodality and a Men's Sodality, whose patron was 51, Patrick,
The Association of the Children of Mary was formally founded by
authority of the Director General in Rome. It was under the patronage
of Mary Immusculate. Fr. Lea was very attentive 1o the neods of the
school, and soon St David's was able 10 boast of a fine new heating
sysiem which provided for the church, house and school. This wis
quite a luxury for any Catholic school in those davs In June, 18391,
the children were all dressed to perfection as they took part in the fird
outdoor Procession of the Blessed Sacrament in Dalkeith since the
Reformution. 11 was a wonderful sight on that * Corpas Cheisti ™ after-
nowsn s Ahe procesdon moved slowly through the church grounds, never
o be forgotien by those who ook part

T ey funr

In 1893, Fr. Lea lefit for Galashiels and Fr, Head was made parish
priest, He had already been in Dalkeith for twenty vears. The following
year, he began an extensive re-decoration of the church, The sanctuary
was clenned and paiated, and the ceiling was specially decorated, being
divided into panels, each of which portraved an appropriate emblem.

The state of the front wall was causing some anxiety, and il was
decided i would be safer W have it supported by stone props, no matier
how unsightly they may be.

In 1895, the Dowager Duchess of Buccleuch died and was buried
in the new vault, there being difficulties about burving her with Catholic
rites beside her huskand in the Episcopal Church of S1. Mary, which
she and her hushand had buill before she became & Catholic. During
the vear Fr. Sherlock had 10 leave and his place was taken by Fr,
Errington

In 1897, two visiting Sisiers of Mercy came 10 Dalkeith, One of
these was Sister Mary Columbe, who is still with us in this centenary
year. Very soon afterwards, the community moved to more spacious
premises in Eskbank, the convent they now occupy. We bear of Lhem
starting up a club for boys two nights in the week.

Fr. Jerrard came 1o take Fr. Errington’s place in charge of the Path-
head and Gorebridge misson. In preparation for the Jubilee Year, Fr,
Head continued with his re-decoration of the church. The Lady Alar
was extensively done in the same manner as the High Altar.

The first great event of the Jubilee Year was the opening of 50
Margaret’s, Gorebridge. A free site for a church had heen given some
vears before by Caplain Dewar of Vogrie, and the building had now
been completed.  Archbishop Smith blessed the church and presided at
the Mass that followed. Fr. Head sang the Mass, and the choir was
that of 5t. Mary's, Pathhead,

On Sth June the Jublice was officially celebrated. There was a
Solemn High Mass, and the special preacher was Fr. Ignatios Garilon.
81, Rector of S1. Aloysus’, Garnethill. In that same vear there was
much rejoicing when Fr. Head was elected a member of Dalkeith School
Board. This was no mean achievement in those davs when bigotry
was still rifie,

So ended the first chapter in the life of this parish. Much had been
accomplished since thai Feastday of the Annunciation in 1854 when
Fr. Mackay first came 10 survey the sceme of his future work. Since
them mearly 5000 children had been baptised and four mew churches
had been buili.
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Fr. Head continued as Rector of 51 David's for the next twenty
vears. In his own quiel way he devoted himsell 1o the service of his
people. visiting them regularly and paying particular attention to the
sick. His pony and trap were familiar sights on the roads in and about
Dalkeith. In 1916 he saw fit 10 keep up with the times, and electricity
was introduced into the church and house

During that same wear, our parishioners mourned the loss of Lord
Ralph Kerr, This noble lord, who had impressed all with his wondrous
humility, was laid to rest in the vaulis below the Holy Souls’™ Alar: the
altar which he and his brother Walter had erected in [B78,

Fr. Head was nearing his fifty vears of service in St David’s, but
il was his vounger assistant. Fr. Jerrard, who had 1o leave because of
ill health, These war years were troublesome vears for the parish, and
it was towards the end of the war that The Calvary was put up in the
church grounds, a consoling reminder of the greatest acl af bove that
was ever shown, Fr. Minealis came wo take Fr. Jerrard’s place. In 1923
the longed-for event ook place. Fr. Head had served 510 David's for
fifty vears. What a wonderful achievement! He was only four years
a peiest when he came here and had remained for ffty more. In the
following year, however, on 26th May, 1924, he died very peacefully
at the age of minety and in the fifiy-fifth year of his priesthood.

Fr, Michael Cullen was appointed parish priest and Fr. Minealis
continued to serve Pathhead and Gorebridge, The Catholic populaton
in Pathbead was dwindling, however, and soon the school had w0 be
closed down, The few pupils who were lefi were given season tickets

Fuilers Evans, Thomson, Hobari and Ficld, S0, e ks Jewil Fatliers
im srrve Dralbeith
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10 ke them o Dalkeith. In 1928, a new school was opened at Newton-
loan for the Catholic children in Mewtongrange and Gorebridge.

In 1930, the Sisters of Nazareth came o Lasswade. If they were to
have Mass every morning, another priest would be reguired in 5.
Davids, The Provincial duly obliged by sending Fr. Cosgrove. The
people of Bonnyrigg soon benefited, for a public Mass was said in the
convenl chapel every Sunday. Fr. Cosgrove was not destined 1o stay
bong, however, and he and Fr. Minealis soon lelt o make way for
Fr. Hobart and Fr. Thomson.

The year 1935 will linger in the memory of many of our parishioners.
It was then that the whole parish repoiced with Mr, and Mrs. Gray as
their son, Fr, Gordon Ciray, ordained (he previous day in Edinburgh,
came home o sav his first Mass in 5t David’s. Littke did our people
think as they walched him on that day and the many other davs when
he came home to visil his parents, that be would grace our centenary
celebrations with hix presence, not merely ax a parshioner who has
honoured the parish in his priesthood, but as oor own Archbeshop, May
G wanch over him and Bless his work

Fr. Cullen began to make improvements in the churnch, but was
called away before they ooubd be Anished, and the mew |1;||'i.5.'|:| Fi::q_
Fr. Hobart, continued where he left off. Mew seats were pul in and
mew flooring was luid down the aisles, Fr, Murphy came for a shor
while, bul afier the outhreak of war in 1939 he was wnl inlo (b
Services as an Army chaplam, His place in Dalkeith was taken by Fr.
Leeming, a brilliant theologan who had just returned from the Gregorian
University in Home, where he was teaching theology, It was his task
i look after the interesis of 51 Mary’s, Pathhead and 5i, Margaret's,
Ceorebridge. He was spon recalled to England, and for the last few
vears Fr. Feld and Fr. Evans came 1o serve 51 Daveld’s, In 1944, the
Jesuit Fathers resigned from 5t Daved's after nearly eighiy-three vears
of glofious endeavour.

The Rew. John Ward, DLIY, was appointed as parish priest with
three assistanls, Frs, Gerard Lynch, Renneth Cox and John Eyvan, Fr,
Cox was appointed to Stiding in the following wear. and Frs. James
O Hanlon and Bernard COFDonnell came o 51, Davic's,

Orwing o the influx of new parishioners from the West of Sootlamd,
Dalkenth once again became a mission cenire, Al that time these five
pricsts were saving cheven Masses and giving five Benedictions every
Sunday, Mass began o be said in a little hall in Mewtongrange and at
Harveston House where ithe Brothers of Chariy were installed. Fr,
O Hanlon was fecalled to Blairs and replaced by Fr. Anthoay Kicrnan,
A vear later Fr. Kiernan was replaced by Fr. John Breen, the retired
Headmaster of 51, Mary's College, Blairs
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Rev. John Ward, [0k

Hev, Anthony Kelly,

The congregation al Newlongrange was growing. and it soon became
evident that, for the good of the people there, it would be most desir-
able to have a priest living amongst them. Accordingly, Newlongrange
and Gorebridge were formally erected as a separate parish and Fr,
Michael O'Connor came to live in lodgings among his people. In no
time he had a church and presbyviery. and be and his curate were .il:ﬂ:
to devole their time to the welfare of this rapidly extending area in a
way which would not have been possible had it continued 1o be served
from St David's,

Relieved now of thee responsabalines, 51 David’s no komger had
need of five pricstis. Fr. Breen was appointed Vicar General and
Administrator of 50 Mary's Cathedral, and soon was made a Domestic
Prelate. Fr. Lynch was transferred to $1. Ninn's. For the next four
vears the parish was served by Fr. John Ward and his two curates, Fr.
O'Donnell and Fr. Ryan. At the end of 1952 Fr. John Ward was
appointed Administrator of S1. John's, Portobello, and his place as parish
priest in St David's was taken by Fr. Amhony Kelly. Bonnyrigg was
separaied from Dalkeith and made a separate parish under the spiritual
care of Fr. Joseph McArndle, who had been living in Dalkeith for the

T iwiidw-raght

past vear. The area of Danderhall was included in the boundarics of
the mew Cilmernon parish

Fr. O'Donnell was moved w Edinburgh, Fr. Dav, whoe had come
from Rosewell with Fr. Kelly, went to America. Fr. Bvan was recalled
i lreland, and Fr l':'ﬂllnjr came o lake s |1|'.|n"

St David’s is now quile a small parish, but it is one with a ghorious
history. 10 a5 the parent to the parishes of Loanhead, Penicuik, Rosewell,
Mewtongrange., Gorebridge and Bonnyrigg

In 1854 one priest served thal vast area where there were about
R0 people scattered in litle groups here and there, Now, that same
area, after one hundred wears, B served by eleven prests who kave o
lvok after the spiritual welfare of nearly seven thousand peopie.

Ohrs is indead a rich inheritance, On this centenary day we rejoice
and give thanks to God for all the graces and benefits that have come
13 this arca through the mediom of 5t Davids. And how filting it is

that we should be celebrating our centenary in May of this, Our
Lady's Year.

From the very beginning, devotion o Chuer Blessed Lady was very
strong in our parish. Shortly after s solemn opening. Lady Lothian
represented us n Rome as the II-::||.:|.' Father, Pius 1 X, defined the dngmn.
of the Immaculate Conception. Many were the pravers zaid in ouwr
church that devotion o Our Blessed Lady would spread throwghout

thiis Lanad

Chur parish church must be very dear to the Heart of Cur Blessad
Losd When we think of the thousamds of Masses and Communions it
has wilisessed; the counlbess rosaries and prayers of ils pricsts amd people,
b could it be otherwise?

In this Marman Year. Our Holy Father asks us we make our parsh
churches shrines of Our Blessed Lady, Surely we, who are privibeged
I wilness s cenlenary, will not farl (o gve S Davad's 113 Chownimg
glory by making of it a shrne wherein Our Lord loves 1o dwell because
il suggesis S0 unmistakably the lovely shrine of Cur Lady's Spotless
Waombh,

Thus can we ensure that ihe future will share in the glories of
ihe pasi,
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St. David’s Church

HERE are many interesting things about Si. David's of which.

perhaps, many of our present parishioners know litlle. The follow-
ing noles are given as a guide w help them know more and thus
appreciate betler the splendour of their own parish church,

St. David's has been deservedly called a * gem ™ of the early English
sivle, On entering, one i quile unprepared for the marked appearance
of spaciousness which it evidently owes (0 the high pitch of its roof and
the depth of its chancel. The architeet was Joseph Hansom of Edin-
burgh. The outside roofwork was done by John MeGowan, a local
Catholic with whom it was a real labour of love, Al the sacrifice of
much of lis spare time, ke cot all the slates into three different forms
and thus was able (o throw all the roofs into a distinet variely of bands
which harmonised pracefully with the ridgings,

THE FIGH ALTAR

This altar was modelled out of Tranent stone by a Mr. Joha
Drummond, the front panels being carved from the designs of a Mr.
Henderson of Edinburgh. It was solemaly consecrated by Bishop
Murdoch on the 22nd Mav, 1854, The wmbernacle was presented by
Lady Cecil Kerr. daughter of the Marchioness of Lothian. The present
throne and canopy are o later addition, being presented by Lord Ralph
Kerr in thanksgiving for the safe birth of his daughter Cecil. The stain-
glass windows behind the altar were given by the congregation, They
poriray 5t John, Our Lady and St. Paul. The ceiling decoration, con-
sisting of numerous panels of mosograms and conls of arms, was designed
by A, McPherson and camried oot under the supervision of Fr. Head
in 1834, The black markle slah to the left of ihe sanciunry shows us
where Lady Lothian was baried. She was given a very special privilege
in being buried inside the sancluary.

THE LADY ALTAR

The altar was built from designs of E. Goldie, Exy. The statue of
Or Lady was given by Lady Alice Kerr. The other four statues were
given by the Duchess of Buccleuch in thanksgiving for the recovery of
her daughter, Lady Mary Scoil, from a severe illness. 5t Joseph and
St Joachim are on one side of Our Lady; 50 John and 56 Anne on
the other.

The body of the martyr, S¢. Vitalis, lies enshrined beneath the aliar,
This major relic was sent from Rome as a personal gift from Pios IX

Tharty

to Lady Lothian. 1t was taken from the Catacombs of Si. Callistus, and
permimsion was given for s pablic veneration in St David's,

The silver sanctuary lamp was given by 1. Hope Scott 1o Lady Ceil
Kerr and subsequently presented by her to the church.

The stain.glass windows were given by Lady Lothian in memory of
her son and daughter, representing their patrons, Sainis John and
Cecilia.

THE FIETA SHEINE

This beautiful statve was made by Maver of Munich, and is a copy
of the famous Achtermann Group in Munster Cathedral. It was Fr,
Head who purchased it in 19060, The little recess in which it now stands
was formerly used as a confessional, Fr. Head uwsed o relate how ihe
ol non-Catholic workman who unpacked this statee was moved 1o tears
at the sight of what our sins had done 1o Our Lord.

THE STATIONS OF THE CROSS

These were specially designed and made in Paris for Lady Lothian.
They were erected in time for the opening of St David's. They are very
devotional works of art in which the figures stand out in bold reliel
from their gilt framed background.

As we move down the church towards the shrine of Our Lady of
Perpetual Succour, we notice two sets of stain-glass windows, One set
depicts the Flight into Egypt and the Death of St Joseph. This set
was given by the congregation 1o commemorate Fr, Joseph Head's fifty
vears of work in their midst. The other set, portraving 51 Raphael and
the Guardian Angel, was presemted by Lord Ralph and Lady Anne
Kerr in thanksgiving for many great mercies and favours, Chiel amongst
these, and the most recent. was the providential escape from injury of

Lady Anne when she fell, head first, down the stairs of Woodburn
Huovuse.

LR LADY OF PERPETUAL SUDDDLR

This pecture was specially paimted in Rome from the oniginal in the
Redemptorist Chiarch, This miraculous picture had newly been rescued
from obscurity and was crowned with great solemnity in the vear 1867,
Our copy came to 51 David's in 1868 and must have been one of the
first, if not the first, 10 come 1o Scotland. Maver of Munich was com-
missioned 10 provide a suitable shrine. and the hand-carved shrine we
now see was finally finshed in 1870,
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THE D¥RGA™N

This was assembled by a famous firm of organ-builders, Hamilton
of Edinburgh. It was designed by Dr. Monk, organisi al the great
Cathedral of York Minster. Built in 1860, it cost £200.

THE RAPTINTRY

In the cenire stands a solid oclagon baptismal forl cul from one
block of Trancat stone. The railings round the Baptistry were gifled
by the congregation on the occasion of the Golden Jubilee of Fr.
Th-:m?um. The stain-glass windows were also gifted for the same
ORI,

HHLY S0ULS' ALTAR

This additional south aiske and burial vault was hailt by Londs
Ralph and Walier Kerr in 1877, The cak altur was designed and carved
by Mayer of Munich. The whole shrine. with that beautiful painting
above the altar and the figure of Our Lord below it was completed in
IEE3. In the year 1884, Pope Leo XII made it a privileged ahiar. The
stin-gliss windows are of 5. Francis of Assisi and S, Elizabeth of
Hungary, the patrons of Lady Amabel Kerr who died in Melbourae
and was buried in St David's. The other sel is of Saints Margaret and
David and St Philip Meri. These were presented by Lord Ralph Kerr.

ST, ALDYSIUS CHAPEL

This little clapel was built at the express wish of the two daughilers
of Lady Lothian. The two children prevailed upon their mother to have
their own litthe shrine and she graciously obliged. Moreover they insisted
on paying for it themselves. The statue of St Aloysius was given by
Lady Alice, the plaster canopy above it being erected by John MoCGowan,
The statue of 81 Stanislaus Koska was given later on by Lord Ralph
Kerr. The stain-glass windows are of Saints Francis Xavier and Bernard,
the respective patrons of Lords Ralph and Walier Kerr.

ST, JOSEFIS SHRINE

This shrine and statue were erecied by a non-Catholic gentbeman.
At the request of his daughter. Mr. Dove erected this shrine in memory
of his wife who had just died. His daughter was a recent convert,

THE BELL

This was blessed amd mamed ihe Gabriel Bell by Bishop Gillies in
the vear 1835, The angelus was rung morming, noon and night

SAUHED RELIS

There are many precious relics in 51, David’s, about thirty-six in all.
The most precious is a small part of the True Cross,
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